

The Richlands Town Council held a regular monthly meeting in the Richlands Council Chambers on October 10, 2017 at 7:30pm with the following present:

Mayor:	Jannis White
Town Manager:	Sue Wade- Filling in for Tim Taylor
Town Clerk:	Connie Allen
Council Members:	Mary Ann Strong, Vickie England Rick Wood, Rod Cury, Larry Johnson, Doug Ratliff
Town Attorney:	Brad Ratliff

Mayor White opened the meeting.

Mayor White gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor White - Do we have anyone who would like to speak that is not on the agenda?

Mayor White - Please add Paul Vandyke, Vickie Ward, Sheila Stanley, Norma Mabe, Matthew Horn.

Mayor White - Do we have any other additions/deletions to the agenda?

Mayor White - If not, do we have a motion to approve the agenda as amended? Rod made the motion, Rick seconded the motion.

Mayor White - We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Motion carries- 6/0.

Mayor White - Are there any corrections, additions or deletions to the minutes?

Mayor White - Do I have a motion to approve the minutes as presented?

Larry - I make a motion to approve the minutes as presented. Vickie seconded the motion.

Mayor White - We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Motion carries - 6/0.

Richard Smith, Vice-Chairman, Planning Commission – The Town of Richlands Planning Commission having conducted a Joint Public Hearing with the Richlands Town Council to rezone certain property in the Town of Richlands Map #105-A8A-0051 and Map# 105-A8A-0048 shall be hereby rezoned from the present classification of B2 (General Business) to a classification of R2 (General Residential) said hereby, at 7:00 pm on Tuesday, October 10, 2017 in the Richlands Municipal Building, pursuant to public notice required by law and receiving citizens comments at that time. We recommend the Town Council to

rezone certain properties from the present zoning classification of B-2 (General Business) to a classification of R-2 (General Residential) location of these properties being 130 Mason Street, Richlands, VA 24641 Map #105-A8A-0051 and 2513 S. Farmer Street, Richlands, VA 24641 Map #105-A8A-0048. The resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote of quorum of the Commission being present. Motion made by Rod Cury and seconded by Virginia Hart. Does anyone have any questions?

Brad - I have an ordinance prepared for Council's consideration.

Rod - Read the Ordinance #0-2017-10-01

Mayor White - What is Council's pleasure?

Rod - Mayor White based on the recommendation of the Planning Commission and consideration in our last meeting where Mr. and Mrs. Settle attended and give us their intention of their request. The property has maintained its residential integrity even though it has been B-2 (General Business) for many years. We recommend that Council adopt the draft ordinance that Mr. Ratliff has prepared. I would like to make a motion that Council adopt the ordinance as written.

Mayor White - We will need to dispense with the first reading.

Rod - I make a motion to dispense with the first reading. Larry seconded the motion.

Mayor White - We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Motion carries - 6/0.

Rod - I make a motion that Council accepts the ordinance as presented. Mary Ann seconded the motion.

Mayor White - We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Motion carries - 6/0.

Brad - The exhibit has not been attached but will be once endorsed.

Shawn Lindsey - Spearhead Trails – Presentation - I was approached a few months ago about building a trail in your area. Spearhead Trails mission is to build trails. We are the Southwest Regional Recreation Authority (SRRRA) known as Spearhead Trails. We follow a certain formula for building the trails. We connect to town centers and to the communities. It brings people into the area which increases the need for food and lodging. Richlands is a great area to build a trail. There are several trails that already exist in the surrounding areas. (Shawn passed out information on trails). We started building trails (4) four years ago and have 400 miles of trails. We build approximately 100 miles a year. We have (5) five trail systems. The last one was in Haysi, VA which opened on April 8. People come on vacation for approximately 3 or 4 days. We want them to come and stay longer providing more options and more connections. We would like to see a trail that connects Pocahontas, VA to Richlands, VA to Honaker, VA

to Grundy, VA and to Haysi, VA. We have already applied for two grants to build a trail in your area. The Shott Foundation for \$400,000 and DMME for \$500,000. We would like to bring a trail into Richlands with as many miles as possible and connect with townships around us. The trails will help bring more industry into the area. We hope that we can get your support for the trail system. The trail won't be successful without community support. There are a couple of things that must happen before we can build a trail. First, we would have to have an easement from land owners. We are talking to private property owners. We ask if they would like to have a trail, if they say "no" we move onto someone else. When we build trails, it gives opportunities to build campgrounds and other businesses. If we have trails on their property they can no longer be sued if someone gets hurt. We need money to build the trails and that is why we applied for grants. We must connect the town centers. The Town and Council would need to apply for a permit with VDOT to allow ATV into your Town.

Larry - It is already affecting our area. I had a family yesterday that rode all the way from Georgia to ride the OP trail.

Brad - People come to this region to see this environment.

Shawn - We do get a lot of people from Canada right now. Biggest target areas are Tennessee, North Carolina, South Carolina, Georgia, Florida and other areas. Average stay is (3) three days. We want them to stay longer and spend more money.

Mayor White - Have you already started the grant process? If so, when do you expect to hear from them? When do you expect a completion date?

Shawn - I have applied for two (2) different grants - Shott Foundation - \$400,000, I have been asked to speak and present information to the Foundation in December. I would hope to hear something by the first of the year. DMME funding for 1.5 million for approximate \$500,000 for the Richlands Trail. We won't open a trail unless we have 50 miles of ground. If the property owners are agreeable and we get enough funding we could have 50 to 100 miles in the first (1) one to (2) two years. The process of getting the land can take a long time. We are only dealing with a few property owners. The property owners I talked to are very favorable.

Shawn - We also have a program for kids. We are going to try and get into the schools next year and talk about ATV safety. If you know of a private school or public school that you could get us into that would be helpful.

Mary Ann - Sounds very exciting and I hope you get your grant money. I would hope the Town of Richlands would help in any way they could. The economic impact would be huge.

Shawn - We will work with you if we get the funding. We would also look at programs to get more people attracted to your area. You are ready for ATV trail.

Rick - When we have our Freedom Festival, can we give a free pass to the trail?

Shawn - We do have a free ride day when we open a trail. We would like to partner with the Festival and add more to the event.

Mayor White - Will you provide frequent updates so we would know when to act on something?

Shawn – Yes, first we would need help with the names of land owners. When we get the funding, I will let you know and you can announce it to your people. If we don't get funding we will find other funding.

Mary Ann - We are hoping to hire a Downtown Coordinator. That person would be a valuable asset to your group.

Shawn - That would be great. We would also look at how Richlands could become a Trail Town and become a trail base economy. You would have to name the trail. Right now, for the project we have been calling is the Richlands Tornado Trail. The name needs to be marketable and appeal to people.

Mayor White - "Scheduled Public Comments" - Ronnie Cordle and Tony Cordle - Discuss Rec. Park Road

Ronnie Cordle – Tony Cordle is not here tonight. I am here on behalf of the Rec. Commission. The committee would like to ask the Town to adopt the recreation park road as a street. (Handed out information) We still have people trying to turn left even though we have put up signs stating "no left turn" and "one way street". It is not for the Police Department to hand out tickets but to give warnings that it is a one-way street. We ask Council to consider adopting the road as a street.

Rick – This is Town of Richlands property?

Ronnie - The street could be funded by the state if it is 50ft. wide and meet certain criteria. The biggest reason for the request is so that law enforcement can give out warnings.

Mary Ann – Would the Town benefit if it was large enough to be a street for funding?

Rick - I don't think you can get what you need to meet the criteria. It would benefit the town but you have property owners on both sides. There is no way they will give us the right-of-way. By looking at the yellow line on the paper it is up against people's houses. We need a 40ft. right-of-way and it must come from the center (20 ft. to each side). We could adopt it as a street but would not be VDOT funded, etc.

Brad - Funding issues would involve the Department of Transportation.

Rick - You would have to bring up to VDOT standards as of today and you would have to have the right-of-way. If you go up the hill you will have to put up a guardrail. I will do all I can to help and I understand the problem with the road.

Ronnie - We are looking at public safety. Some people obey the signs and some don't.

Mayor White - We can refer this to the Street Committee with a recommendation at our next meeting.

Mayor White - "Unscheduled Public Comments" – Please remember you only get (3) three-minute maximum. Please state your name and address when you come up front to speak. First will be Paul Vandyke.

Paul Vandyke - Box 502, Raven, VA 24639 – I want to address the issue with Jerome. He is my nephew and he was raised in church. He was faithful to church. Anything to do with church you are dealing with God. Satanic worship is totally against church. I have been a Pastor for 30 some years. If his mom and dad were here today they would be very disappointed since he was raised in church. I know we all have the freedom to do what we want to but I am against it and other Pastors are against it. We don't need this in Richlands. I hope you deny his request. He is my nephew and I love him. Sometimes good kids turn out bad but we don't have to agree with the bad things they are doing. I appreciate your time.

Mayor White - Brad can you give us some details. They are a retail business. Can you give an explanation for the benefit of everybody here tonight?

Brad – This came to my attention today. There is a business in Town called Mountain Magic operated by Jerome Vandyke and Mark Mullins. This business is listed in the zoning permit as a book store and gift shop. That is what his business permit is for and the permitted use. To our knowledge there has not been a request for anything other than what is listed in the zoning permit.

Mayor White - Can you explain what would have to happen if there was a change to the zoning permit.

Brad – For any permitted use, you must go before the Council to make a request. Richlands has a very defined zoning system. There is a business license for reading of tarot cards, etc., but there is no zoning to permit reading of tarot cards and any type of things.

Mayor White - "Unscheduled Public Comments" - Vickie Ward

Vickie Ward - 1901 Fifth Street, Richlands, VA - I am here on the behalf of the surrounding churches in this community to express our strong concern about the Mountain Magic Store and what they are promoting. I appreciate everyone that has come with their concerns about this situation. This is a very serious situation. If you don't know a lot about it I have some material to pass around. I called the store and ask them if they had tarot readings and they said they didn't at that time but was going to hire someone to come in and start doing that. I understand that you don't permit tarot reading in Richlands

and this County. They have the tarot cards and pentagrams. I spoke to Mark, they have rocks they put spells on and they have a lot of other items that are very satanic and very dangerous. I have grandchildren here and I am very concerned along with the community and churches. This will snowball and will get bigger. They have Ouija boards and I know other places have Ouija boards. Jerome Vandyke is part of the business and he has written a letter telling how he feels about this and what he is doing. (Passed out information) The churches and ministers are against it and it is a very serious thing. Black magic is very dangerous and serious. They have a gathering on the full moon but don't know what they do at the gathering. I am sure it is no good. I have knowledge of this and I have studied this. I think you should be concerned enough and try to do something about it. I hope they don't start sacrificing, I know that can happen. People are concerned about their churches and their families and so am I.

Mayor White - "Unscheduled Public Comments" – Sheila Stanley

Sheila Stanley - 115 Carter Street, Richlands, VA - I am here tonight on behalf of our church and Richlands Tabernacle. We are both concerned because our church is so close to the business. We hear a lot of things but the facts are what matters. A lot of you didn't know all this was going on in this place of business. I know a lady that her daughter-in-law didn't know anything about this and was very gullible. They were trying to teach her how to talk to her sister that died when she as a little girl. You can call it whatever you want to but biblical we don't believe in that. I know years ago you could not have a liquor store close to a church or House of God. On their door, they have house of spirits written on it. This is a spirit but a different kind of spirit. These spirits will follow your children home at night. I have had the privilege of casting some of these spirits out of people and I know it is a spirit you don't want to get your children involved in. I was in a revival in Indiana years ago, a 12-year-old kid came in my prayer line, he had gotten involved with this on the internet and he learned how to do different things that was against Jesus. He was doing what he learned on the internet and when they brought him to our services he was in very bad shape. When he came thru the prayer line his eyes turned to solid red when he looked at me for prayer. I know you work very hard in this town. I have worked with some of you on different occasions. I know the town wants to keep a clean town and your goal and heart is the people in this town. If it is true and this kind of store is brought in, I feel as Pastors, Pastor Stanley and myself, along with Philip and Carolyn Horton from the Tabernacle Church, think it is too close to the House of God. It is disrespectful if they are carrying on these acts. This issue tonight, is it allowed to be that close to a church? I ask if the Council could make a motion to consider the House of God and have some morals for this Town for your children and grandchildren. It's your children/grandchildren as well as mine. They could get involved with it and one day we may have to stick together to help them be free to. Thank you for your time tonight.

Mayor White – Just to address what you said Sheila, Chief of Police will enforce zoning if there is a zoning violation.

Mayor White - "Unscheduled Public Comments" – Norma Mabe

Norma Mabe – 110 Bandy Lane, Richlands, VA – I am here to represent Tabernacle of Praise. Our church is located at 125 Kents Ridge Road. I am the Assistant Pastor. I feel like if all this is true as being a minister of the gospel, it is against biblical principles. I am against it. I would like to see it resolved if this is happening. It is not good for our children or our community, especially Christians. I stand for Jesus and the biblical teaching. That is my issue tonight, I am against it and would like it resolved. Thank you.

Mayor White – “Unscheduled Public Comments” - Matthew Horn

Matthew Horn - 162 Raisin Road, Cedar Bluff, VA - I have a café at 105 Suffolk Avenue. The reason I wanted to approach the Council is the same reason as last year, walking in Richlands specifically. I have watched over the (2) two years of business that I have done here, there is an increase in the people walking in Richlands. I congratulate all of us for making it a habit but what I have not seen is any changes to the safety of those who walk in Richlands. It is a concern. If you have ever come to my café and you park across the street next to where the Post Office is located, try to walk across that street. I am asking that you check it out and see if there is any way possible we can get some vertical crossing markers put in the center of the streets. I understand there are plenty of problems that can be presented in doing so, but I think there is plenty of solutions that we can offer to ensure safety. In business, my goal is to slow people down. I cannot make money at volume in the Town of Richlands, one day I hope I can. As of right now I need to see that my patronages are safe. I need to have the opportunity to provide them a safe environment and ensure they can get into my doors safely. This is an issue, the people speeding around the corner so fast they can barely hold on to the steering wheel. They do not look and they do not care about pedestrians. I don't mind walking across the street when there is traffic coming. I would rather be hit than one of my patronages. I hope that the Town stops and prevents this before I am struck or any of my patronages. I ask that you take this into heavy consideration. That it is not just part of zoning commission you set up. This is an issue for the entire Town, just not my street.

Rod - The zoning comes under the Planning Commission but I will certainly seek the advice of the Town Attorney. I understand your issues. I will defer to Brad or Sue for advice to see if there is anything we can do to help with pedestrian's safety.

Brad - Honestly, the Street Committee should take a look at it and coordinate with Mr. Taylor to see what we can do.

Matthew - Not just my block but all the crossings in Richlands. I think the different townships that have a system set up, it helps reduce what could be a very bad situation.

Mayor White - You are talking mainly about people walking in crosswalks? I know we have issued tickets for people not stopping because I have seen it on our reports. We will refer this to the Street Committee along with the Chief of Police hopefully we can come up with a good solution.

Vickie - What have other Towns done about the same issues? I walk at night and I know what you are talking about.

Matthew - I have noticed in Salam and Abingdon they have the vertical markings across the middle of the crossing. A very small limited liability stand placed easily. If a car was to strike it would not be anything that would cause major issues. They should be easily replaced and not much cost to the Town

Mayor White - Does Tazewell have these too?

Larry - State Street does.

Matthew - Cedar Bluff has bright lights in front of the Town Hall and at the gazebo which helps.

Mary Ann - I spoke to Mr. Taylor about the vertical markers. His response was because most our streets are one way that would be very difficult. The streets that Matthew is referring too are not illuminated. There could be a problem with snow plowing in the winter. I meant to ask Mr. Taylor if you could put in the center and in the winter months take down if it causes a problem.

Rick - All the towns that have them fold them up in the winter. They have springs and they will fold up and down.

Mary Ann – When my office was on Front Street and you parked at the Professional Building or the Incubator to cross over, it is very dangerous. It is very dangerous at the Bearded Moose.

Matthew - My original petition was broader. My idea was to improve parking on Front Street. I have talked to many businesses on this. I feel I would have a lot of support I would like to see diagonal parking on Front Street just like Suffolk Avenue. I know it would be a big task but parking is important.

Rick - You are restricting the road way, it would become narrow. We don't want to narrow the roads. When you turn the vehicle sideways, people walk in between them. They can walk out in front of car and get hit.

Rod – Matthew, I am glad you came and it is an important topic. The first issue is to find out about the vertical markers. This is not a zoning issue it is a street issue. That is why the Town Attorney recommended that it be given to the Street Committee and on up to the Mayor. My employees parked at the post office parking lot when I had a store on Front Street. There was a marker between Front Street and Norfolk Street. Anyone could cross from what is now the Furniture Store over to the old Richlands Florist. It was very successful. We had to remove it due to VDOT regulations. There must be a more modern way to do this.

Mayor White - Thank you for coming and the Street Committee will take this into consideration.

Mayor White - "Council Member Reports" – Rod Cury



Rod –When the Planning Commission met to discuss the rezoning of the property for Mr. and Mrs. Settle, we looked extensively at the maps in that area. There are other areas that need looked at by the Commission to see if they also would fit into R2 Residential. Mr. Taylor recommended that in our next planning meeting, we study that area to see if there are other places similar to the Settle situation. He explained was many years ago this area was anticipated to become a business area, but it has not. It is consistent with consistent zoning and not what we call spot zoning. The Commission will study the area. But it will take time. That is one of our goals to study that area and come back with recommendations to the Town.

Rod - I would also like to thank CART for their production, “7 Bridges”. It was great and would like to thank CART for what they bring to Richlands.

Mayor White – “Council Member Reports” - Vickie England

Vickie – No one decorated for fall this year in our Town. The Bearded Moose has a nice display. Does the Garden Club take care of the decorations?

Mayor White - Individual businesses take care of the decorations.

Vickie - Is there something that we can do on the street poles? We need to think about changing that. Other towns around us are decorated for fall. It doesn't look good on us that we can't even put an orange ribbon on the poles. We have a little time before Christmas parade. We need to spruce it up. It would look nice if we could have some decorations for Fall.

Mayor White – “Council Member Report” – Rick Wood

Rick – I have had complaints of where B & L park their trucks. People can't see what is coming up the street. People are pulling out in front of other cars. Can we put a mirror across the street or something else? They are parked there a lot, hopefully they are having that much business.

George - I will check it out.

Mayor White - It is supposed to be only when they are loading and unloading. Julie, can you help us with that? Are the trucks sitting there?

Julie Cordle, B & L representative- They are only parked in the loading zone if they are being loaded for delivery or there is furniture being unloaded.

Rick - So a mirror across the road may help.

Mary Ann - The street in front of Kidd Tire had the same problem. A mirror was put up there and it solved the issue.

Vicki - There is a flag pole there it could be very easily fixed.

Mayor White – “Council Member Reports” – Doug Ratliff

Doug – What is the status on the carport at Hidden Valley because it is still there?

Brad - I thought that issue was resolved; I have not heard anything else about it.

Mary Ann - He is trying to sell it but it is still there. The people in Hidden Valley are very upset.

Brad – We can certainly address. It has been going on for a year. If it continues it is a violation and he can be fined.

Doug - Do we need closed session on the gas issue?

Brad - We don't have any changes yet or know anything new. Mr. Taylor will be exploring what was said and work with consultants.

Mayor White - He doesn't have anything new on the issue. When he gets back he will work on it.

Sue – I know they did send out new surveys.

Doug – Can we have special vote as soon as Tim gets back?

Mayor White – “Council Member Reports” – Larry Johnson

Larry - We had an in-depth discussion on salaries for the Police Department last meeting. Are there any updates?

Frank - We don't have any update yet, when Tim gets back we will address.

Mayor White – “Council Member Reports” - Mary Ann

Mary Ann – Thank you Sue for getting the Downtown Coordinator position posted on the Town website. Just wanted to remind everyone we do have this position available and are very serious about filling the position. If anyone is interested in a full-time position as Richlands Downtown Coordinator I would encourage you to please apply. The coordinator would also be responsible for small things like decorating. They would not only be event planner and decorator, but for economic development. It is a multi-facet type position.

I would like to thank CART, the High School program the Eagles were fantastic. CART appreciates the Town sponsoring them. It allows them to get their matching grant.

We had our Rec Park Commission meeting on September 18. Our next meeting will be October 16<sup>th</sup> and changed the time to 7:30 pm and will be held at the Rec Park.

On September 28, there was a Chamber of Commerce meeting that was facilitated by Doug Jackson, VA Department of Housing and Community Development. The purpose of the meeting was to discuss the opinions, concerns, support or non-support of a county wide Chamber. I am very disappointed that Richlands had the least attendance of all the meetings. They had meetings in Pocahontas, Bluefield, Tazewell and Cedar Bluff. However, it was a very good meeting. Ginger Branton, Richlands Chamber and Pam Meade, Tazewell Chamber will be reporting and will be asked to speak at Council meetings over the next several months once Mr. Jackson compiles all the information. There is strong support for Tazewell County Chamber of Commerce.

Mayor White – Does anyone have any questions on Department Head Reports?

Mayor White - Did you get a change to take care of the boards?

George – Yes.

Mayor White - I would like to thank all the people that came out tonight. We appreciate your interest in the Town. We appreciate the support you give to the Council and the Town.

Mayor White - Brad do you have anything?

Brad - No, but would like to acknowledge the publics engagement; it is very impressive for a small town.

Mayor White –“Manager’s Report” - Sue Wade filling in for Tim Taylor.

Sue – You have a copy of the bills to be paid this month. Please take a moment to look at the bills and see if you have any questions. Check number 56782 – Carolina Meter and Supply Co. \$38,880. 00 – We purchased 144 radio reading meters.

Rod - I would like to mention one thing. A Richlands High School student helped invent that whole process.

Sue - Check 56847 – VML Insurance Programs - \$52,429.00 - Quarterly payment

Mary Ann - Check 56832 – SV Criminal Justice Training Academy - \$6,996.00 - Is this for our officers?

Sue – Yes

Vickie - Do we have a completion date for the Section House?

Sue - Late October

Mayor White - Do we have a motion to allow Mr. Taylor to pay the bills? Rick made the motion, Larry seconded the motion.

Mayor White - We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Motion carries 5/1 (Doug stepped out).

Sue – You have a report from our auditors Robinson, Farmer, and Cox Associates. Each year they must follow the standards set by VRS on our state retirement. We met all the guidelines, deadlines and were in compliance with reporting.

Mary Ann - You and Adrienne do excellent work. It makes their job very easy.

Sue - Section House Project - Twin Enterprise Pay Request #4 is for \$52,917.94.

Mayor White - We need a motion to pay the bill.

Rod – I have a question. The bill is included in the check register. We have already voted to pay the bills according to the check register. Do we need to make another motion to pay? Brad is a motion necessary?

Brad – No

Mayor White - Normally we would have acted on this first.

Sue - Halloween will be observed on October 31 from 5:30 to 8:00 pm. The Veterans Day Parade will be November 4 starting at 3:00pm. I think line up is at 2:00 pm. Christmas Parade – November 27 at 5:00pm.

Mayor White - Christmas Parade time changed to 5:45pm

Vickie - Are we just having the Richlands Band or other bands?

Mayor White - We are trying to get a couple other bands from different High Schools. Bruce said he would help us with that. We must pay them a fee.

Vickie - Our Richlands Band is going to Tazewell. I was told that our Board of Supervisors had given funds for bands to participate in other county parades. This could be a rumor, not sure.

Mayor White - I know we are going to pay them for the Veterans Parade when they play. We use the yard sale money for things like that. They have to hire a driver and they have a lot of expense.

Vickie - How many bands will be marching in the Veterans Parade?

Mayor White - Just Richlands as far as I know.

Vickie - It would be nice if we could have more than one band for the Christmas Parade

Mayor White - We are trying to get other bands. I am going to try and get some of the business to sponsor them.

Rod – Even if we were to supplement for the Town to participate, it is worth it.

Rod - Same as Project Graduation, I didn't get a second last time and I can't make a motion, but I wish we could.

Vickie - Our bands have been in several competitions.

Mayor White – Rod did you have a comment on the Section House?

Rod - Yes, I would like to thank Travis and the crew at Twin Enterprises for all the work they are doing. I am very proud of it for our Town. Our committee worked so hard for so long.

Vickie - He has redone the Richlands Floral Building. They tore down the carwash. It makes the Town look so much better and is going to be a big asset for the other end of that street.

Mayor White - Does anyone else have anything to discuss tonight?

Mayor White - Do we have a motion to adjourn?

Vickie – I make the motion to adjourn, Larry seconded the motion.

Mayor White - We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Motion carries - 6/0.

---

Jannis White, Mayor

---

Connie Allen, Town Clerk